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DATE:

February 8, 2018
TO:

All Proposers RFP #117089: Airport Advertising Concessions
FROM:
Carolyn Clow, Purchasing Agent

SUBJECT:
ADDENDUM #3
The following people were in attendance at the December 14, 2017 vendor conference:

	Name
	Organization

	Carolyn Clow
	Dane County Purchasing

	Megan Rogan
	Dane County Purchasing

	Brad Livingston
	Dane County Regional Airport

	Brent McHenry
	Dane County Regional Airport

	Kim Jones
	Dane County Regional Airport

	Lucas Yezik
	Clear Channel Airports

	Brig Newman
	Lamar Airports

	Wayne Rasor
	Fastsigns

	Dave Dushek
	Fastsigns

	Steve Moody
	Fastsigns


The following responses are provided to questions received:
	Question #1
	Please clarify the reason behind needing to bring in a dedicated ISP to run the digital signage network, as opposed to running it on the existing network and ISP. Most likely we would be contracting through the same ISP that is currently in the building and there could be issues with having to separate accounts in the same building from the same provider. If security is a concern, we are happy to bring in network engineers to work with your IT department so that everyone is comfortable with the network security. If data overload is the issue, we can assure you that the players will pull very little data and will cache most everything locally on each player and only pull data when new content is sent. We are just trying to keep the network side of things as simple and clean as possible. 

	
	

	Answer #1
	Because the Airport is a government agency, access to the County ISP, networking switches, routers, or other devices will not be allowed.  This is to ensure the safety and security of our network.

SupraNet and ATT currently provide ISP service to the building and can be contracted for remote ISP necessities. 

The Airport will provide the point-to-point infrastructure from the D-Mark to the devices throughout the building based on current locations

	
	

	Question #2
	Please provide the dimensions of the space which houses the 10ft scrolling display over the escalator.

	
	

	Answer #2
	Total area: 14’ W X 8’ H currently housing a 10” Revmax scroller

	
	

	Question #3
	Please provide the dimensions of the Fabric Tension Display over the soffit targeting the South Elevator (American Family Insurance).

	
	

	Answer #3
	Total area: 24’ W X 6’ H currently housing a tension fabric


	Question #4
	Since the vertical digital screens associated with the FIDS are a component of a larger display, please specify the size and quantity of screens we should propose for the FIDS advertising.

	
	

	Answer #4
	Preferred model = LG Digital Signage 55”  55SE3KB or similar. 

Possible 10  locations for monitor installations in correlation to FIDS displays and Wayfinding locations.

	
	

	Question #5
	Currently the RFP has set the Minimum Annual Guarantee (MAG) and Percentage. It was inferred in the meeting that these were actually minimums and proposers were allowed to bid higher amounts. It is our opinion that a set MAG and percentage is the most equitable and fair way to proceed in that it prohibits companies from over-bidding or submitting unrealistic financial offers. Please confirm that the Year 1 MAG and rent percentage has been set at 45% of gross sales, or $175,000 whichever is greater. 

	
	

	Answer #5
	These figures (45% and $175,000, whichever is greater) are minimum expectations.  Responders may propose a greater applicable MAG and/or payment of a greater percentage of gross revenues.  Proposers will be bound by the numbers submitted.


	Question #6
	Could the County please confirm that this airport advertising concession lease is an exclusive agreement, as stated in the pre-proposal vendor conference on 12/14/17? 

	
	

	Answer #6
	This contract is an exclusive 5-year contract with the option to renew for an additional 5-year term. Only one vendor will be selected

	
	

	Question #7
	Tallying the numbers outlined in the RFP for evaluation criteria, the total scoring bidders can achieve is 105% (20% General Requirements, 65% Technical Requirements, 20% Revenue Proposal). Further taking into account the Local Purchasing Ordinance, which automatically allots 5 points to local respondents, can the County please clarify the scoring/weighting of the evaluation criteria and the total amount of proposal points a bidder can receive? 
Description 

Percent 

General requirements 

20 

a. 

Organizational Capabilities 

(Section 4.2) 

10 

b. 

Staff Qualifications 

(Section 4.3) 

10 

Technical requirements 

65 

a. 

Advertising Revenue Development 

15 

b. 

Advertising Technology Implementation 

10 

c. 

Display Coordination / Artistic Management 

10 

d. 

Inventory Management / Inventory Expansion 

10 

e. 

Service, Repair, Replacement, and Maintenance 

10 

F 

ACDBE / Demonstration of Good Faith Effort 

10 

Revenue proposal 

20 

TOTAL 

100 



	
	

	Answer #7
	Section 3.4 has been changed to the following:
Description 

Percent 

General Requirements 

20 

a. 

Organizational Capabilities 

(Section 4.2) 

10 

b. 

Staff Qualifications 

(Section 4.3) 

10 

Technical Requirements 

60

a. 

Advertising Revenue Development 

10 

b. 

Advertising Technology Implementation 

10 

c. 

Display Coordination / Artistic Management 

10 

d. 

Inventory Management / Inventory Expansion 

10 

e. 

Service, Repair, Replacement, and Maintenance 

10 

F 

ACDBE / Demonstration of Good Faith Effort 

10 

Revenue Proposal 

20 

TOTAL 

100 



	
	

	Question #8
	Section 6.0 of the RFP, Revenue Proposal, states that the successful proposer will pay the greater of 45 percent of gross revenues or the minimum guarantee (MAG) and that the MAG for the first year of the Concession Lease shall be $175,000. Additionally, “Attachment G - Revenue Proposal” lists anticipated investment, anticipated revenue projections and anticipated rate card, only. There is no section within the RFP which accepts an alternative Revenue Proposal and the current RFP evaluation / scoring does not reflect this criterion. Therefore, please confirm that the County has established the revenue share and MAG financial thresholds in the RFP and that they are non-biddable, as the RFP document states. 

	
	

	Answer #8
	See answer to Question 5.  We will accept alternate proposals.  With respect to scoring see answer to Question 7.  Each revenue proposal will comprise 20% of the score. 

	
	

	Question #9
	The cover page of the RFP states that the proposal shall be separated into a Technical proposal and a Revenue proposal. Later, Section 2.7 of the RFP “Proposal Organization and Format” outlines a “Cost Proposal (mentioning Section 6)” and also “Attachment G. Cost Summary Page”, under Required Forms. Can the County please confirm the following: 

a. Should the Revenue Proposal be submitted completely separate from the Technical Proposal? 

b. If required to be bound separately, can the technical proposal and revenue proposal be contained in the same package upon delivery? 

c. The RFP states that proposers should submit one complete electronic copy of the proposal on a flash drive or CD. Should the Technical Proposal and Revenue Proposals be submitted on separate flash drives or CD? 

d. If the Revenue Proposal is to be submitted separately, can proposers reference their proposed offer/financial terms in their Technical Proposals? 

	
	

	Answer #9
	Dane County is looking for one complete original  and 3 copies of:

· General Requirements

· Technical Requirements

· Required Forms

· Appendices

And in a separate envelope Dane County is looking for one complete original  and 3 copies of:

· Cost Proposal

All of these documents can be contained in the same package for delivery.

	
	

	Question #10
	As part of Attachment D - Designation of Confidential and Proprietary Information, the County states “Prices always become public information when proposals are opened, and therefore cannot be designated as confidential.” The Revenue Proposal outlined on Attachment G requests anticipated investment, annual revenue projections, and rate card for prosed advertising locations. Advertising rate cards are typically a strategic element in regionally marketing and are considered proprietary and protectable under most states FOIA laws. Can the County please confirm what information will be deemed as pricing and if rate cards with be exempt from being released as public information? 

	
	

	Answer #10
	As indicated in Exhibit D, issued with RFP No. 117089, records in the custody of Dane County (including proposals submitted in response to RFPs) are subject to Wisconsin’s public records law, Sections 19.31-19.39, Wis. Stats.  The inquiry regarding Exhibit D appears to suggest that advertising rate cards contain information that may qualify as a “trade secret.”  Wisconsin’s public records law expressly exempts trade secrets from disclosure.  The applicable statutory definition of “trade secret” is fully set forth in Exhibit D.  If a proposer concludes that any information it is providing in response to the RFP (including pricing information) is a trade secret as defined under the Wisconsin Statutes, the proposer may use Exhibit D to designate the information as confidential and proprietary.                     

	
	

	Question #11
	In regards to adherence to the County’s ACDBE participation goal and demonstration of good faith effort, (GFE) it has been our experience that properly documenting GFE to comprehensively display the respondents attempts to incorporate an ACDBE partner can create an extensive paper trail and will substantially inflate the length of a respondents proposal. Most recently when responding to a Request for Proposal of a similar scope our organization included nearly 300 pages detailing GFE as part of our hardcopy submission. For ease of viewing for the County, are respondents able to submit demonstrations of GFE electronically?

	
	

	Answer #11
	Please provide a website link, FTP site download link, or other viewable source to review the required ACDBE partner participation as it relates to a GFE.

	
	

	Question #12
	Can the County please confirm if the goods and services expenditure model (an FAA approved alternative method under 49 CFR 23.51(c)(5)(ii)) will be an acceptable method to pursue in regards to meeting the good faith effort (GFE) of the County’s ACDBE participation goal?

	
	

	Answer #12
	Yes, that will be an acceptable method. However please keep in mind that any participation that you intend to count must use Wisconsin Certified ACBDE firms.

	
	


Please acknowledge receipt of this addendum by noting “Addendum #3 Received” on the bottom of the Signature Affidavit when you submit your proposal. If you have any questions regarding this addendum, please contact me at 608-266-4966.
Sincerely,
Carolyn A. Clow, CPPB
Purchasing Agent
